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3 FISH POND RE LTD FRM OBJAN27 FAREB EEPHTM 85956360 2027/01/08 178
4 CAPE LOOKOUT RE LTD FRM OSAPR2ZY I=a2—5 EEFNHR 12604236 2027/04/05 150
5 GALILED RE LTD FRM 08JAN26 I=a—5 TEENHR 12.197487 2026/01/08 1.49
6 MOMA LISA RE LTD FRN 08JUL25 N=E1—5" ZWPHHE 11.546118 2025/07/08 1.49
7 | URSA RE LTD FRMN 07DEC2026 N=a—5 TWHEN 13.861656 2026/12/07 134
8 EASTON RE PTE LTD FRN 0BJANZT7 vuii—L EBRMM 12346582 2027/01/08 132
8 KILIMANJARD Il RE LTD SER A FRN 19DEC26 /1=a2—9 EBAIHM  5.450000 2026/12/19 131
10 FLOODSMART RE LTD FRN 25FEB25 R=a2—% WA 16.880955 2025/02/25 1.30
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2024
¢ ( ) )
2019 99,501,492 | 14,201,848 98.86 14,110 9,737
2020 93,722,480 | 13,377,010 101.45 14,480 10,010
2021 78,600,643 | 11,218,670 100.40 14,330 9,994
2022 52,236,397 | 7,455,701 101.49 14,486 10,030
2023 39,021,628 | 5,569,557 105.32 15,032 9,987
2024 65,589,397 | 9,361,575 104.92 14,975 10,173
2023 10 36,919,466 | 5,269,515 114.75 16,378 10,689
11 34,744,489 | 4,959,081 102.06 14,567 10,164
12 43,621,420 | 6,226,085 102.84 14,678 10,261
2024 46,137,903 | 6,585,263 104.14 14,864 10,324
49,750,740 | 7,100,923 105.42 15,047 10,404
57,233,683 | 8,168,964 106.63 15,219 10,488
63,420,552 | 9,052,015 106.41 15,188 10,384
65,589,397 | 9,361,575 104.92 14,975 10,173
69,878,842 | 9,973,807 105.98 15,127 10,231
92,210,382 | 13,161,188 107.23 15,305 10,340
94,679,974 | 13,513,673 109.27 15,596 10,517
99,318,730 | 14,175,762 111.48 15,912 10,704

771257



(201811 R158 (EAMEE)~2024F98F8)

A(N2JBD) ISR

CEEL) (EFERIL)

0 mmEn ) =

130 | — SRS DSy FRREs (o)
| — 100 R S ()

125

uni 100
110| 75
wu' 50
90 125
80 : : : : . 0

20085 20195 20205 20215 20224 20235 2024%
11A158 9R*x8 %A%8 98%x08 SA*H 98%8 98%8

() (@)
T T e o
12000 | — FERMRI SR MR EH (8) .

= 1CIZ7h S S ()

11,000 20

10,000 60

2,000 30

alum i i i i i a_
200185 20195 20205 20214 20225 20235 2024%F

11A158 SA%H 9B%H 9RA%H 5A%8 98%8 9Ax8

EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

() e SR DS R R, RS i 580 3 A CERRL - Es 2L TRl O TT,

2018 11 15 2019 0.00 0 0
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627,640 2,000 625,640
2018 11 15 2019 (627,640) (2,000) (625,640)
77,120 156,310 546,450
2019 2020 (77,120) (156,310) (546, 450)
131,380 141,470 536,360
2020 2021 (131, 380) (141,470) (536, 360)
23,510 198,430 361,440
2021 2022 (23,510) (198,430) (361,440)
26,560 114,340 273,660
2022 2023 (26,560) (114,340) (273,660)
212,100 63,870 421,890
2023 2024 (212,100) (63,870) (421,890)
419,860 0 419,860
2018 11 15 2019 (419, 860) ©) (419, 860)
17,880 25,700 412,040
2019 2020 (17,880) (25,700) (412,040)
57,850 197,550 272,340
2020 2021 (57,850) (197,550) (272,340)
31,650 104,500 199,490
2021 2022 (31,650) (104,500) (199,490)
5,000 61,820 142,670
2022 2023 (5.,000) (61,820) (142,670)
208,410 21,650 329,430
2023 2024 (208,410) (21,650) (329,430)
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2024 31
2024 31
2024
62,425,985 2,3 64,532,239 9,210,686
2 777,197 110,929
417,913 2 398,653 56,900
3,355 479
65,711,444 9,378,994
36 5
6 122,011 17,415
122,047 17,420
65,589,397 9,361,575
NAV

44,263,672

421,890 104.92 14,975
NAV

3,351,231,036
329,430 10,173
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2024 31
2024
6,031,755 860,912
5 (422,157) (60,254)
5,609,598 800, 658
34,894 4,980
34,894 4,980
592 84
12,000 1,713
11,151 1,592
156,181 22,292
19,387 2,767
10,000 1,427
267,799 38,223
16,556 2,363
12,292 1,754
54,700 7,807
560, 658 80,023
5,083,834 725,616
(2,887,966) (412,199)
56,785 8,105
(64,071) (9,145)
(2,895,252) (413,239)
93,549 13,352
(19,522) (2,786)

74,027 10,566
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2,262,609 322,942
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2024 31
2024

5,083,834 725,616

(2,887,966) (412,199)

56,785 8,105

(64,071) (9,145)

93,549 13,352

(19,522) (2.,786)

2,262,609 322,942

(3,286,794) (469,124)

(592,997) (84,638)

(3,879,791) (553,763)

212,100 22,255,126 3,176,474

208,410 14,375,475 2,051,812

63,870 (6,908,519) (986,053)

21,650 (1,537,131) (219, 395)

28,184,951 4,022,838

26,567,769 3,792,018

39,021,628 5,569,557

65,589,397 9,361,575
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2024 31
2024
2,262,609 322,942
(33,552,208)  (4,788,907)
9,399,833 1,341,638
(5,609,598) (800, 658)
2,887,966 412,199
(93,549) (13,352)
19,753 2,819
8 1
13,603 1,942
(24,671,583)  (3,521,375)
36,630,601 5,228,286
(8,445,650)  (1,205,448)
(3,879,791) (553,763)
24,305,160 3,469,075
(366,423) (52,300)
1,542,273 220,129
1,175,850 167,829
34,320 4,898
(583) (83)
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NAV

NAV
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105.32 9,987
11.35 1,283

2.15 (457)
13.50 826
(13.90) (640)
104.92 10,173
12.81% 8.26%
(1.23%) (1.21%)
(0.89%) (1.01%)
(2.12%) (2.22%)
10.61% 12.39%
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2016 29
2018 10 17
2018 11 15
2024 31
2022 24
2024 31

GAAP

31
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65

GAAP



31

ASC

2024
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more likely than
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50
NAV

ASC 480
ASC 480

2024 31
ASC 820
ASC 820
ASC 820

ASC 820
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2024 31

64,532,239 64,532,239

64,532,239 64,532,239

2023 273,660 142,670

212,100 208,410

(63,870) (21,650)

2024 31 421,890 329,430
100

10,000
100 100 10

112/257



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

11

2024 31 3,286,794
592,997
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2024 31
100
5,000
1,000
0.025

0.35

5,000
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10,000

0.50

0.10

750

2024 31

1,024
1,379
19,326
18,392
853
33,130
2,164
45,743
122,011
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NAV
NAV
2024 31
2024 31
157.14500
2024 31
2024 30
2024 2024 30 26,657,728
4,012,094
2,839,291 1,708,222
2024 24 06902 100

2024 30
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2024 31

NK CAT Bond Fund Class A JPY (Hedged)

Shares 286,287 22,411,400 34.17
NK CAT Bond Fund Class A USD Shares 295,647 42,120,839 64.22
. 62,425,985 64,532,239 98.39

JPY
uSD
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2001 Cat RE Ltd FRN 08-Jan-27
Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-25

Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-26

Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-26

Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27

Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27

Aquila Re Ltd 2023-1 FRN 07-Jun-27
Armor Re Il Ltd FRN 07-May-27
Bayou Re Ltd FRN 30-Apr-27

Bayou Re Ltd FRN 26-May-30

Blue Halo Re Ltd FRN 24-Feb-25
Blue Ridge Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-27
Bowline Re 2018 Series A FRN 23-May-25
Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 28-Apr-26
Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 05-Apr-27
Citrus Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-26

Citrus Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27
Everglades Re 1l Ltd FRN 13-May-27
Everglades Re Il Ltd FRN 13-May-27
Everglades Re 1l Ltd FRN 13-May-27
Everglades Re Il Ltd FRN 19-May-25
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 25-Feb-25
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FRN 25-Feb-25
Foundation Re IV Ltd FRN 08-Jan-27
Four Lakes Re Ltd FRN 07-Jan-27
Galileo Re Ltd 08-Jan-26

Galileo Re Ltd 07-Jan-28

Gateway Re Ltd 0% 23-Dec-24
Gateway Re Ltd FRN 12-May-25
Gateway Re Ltd FRN 24-Feb-26
Gateway Re Il Ltd FRN 27-Apr-26
Gateway Re Ltd FRN 30-Jun-26
Herbie Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-32

Herbie Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-32

Hestia Re Ltd A FRN 22-Apr-25
Hestia Re Ltd A FRN 07-Apr-26
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1,600,000 1,589,600 1.60
500,000 486,400 0.49
566,000 561,585 0.56
820,000 811,800 0.82

2,000,000 1,980,000 1.99

1,165,000 1,153,350 1.16
850,000 847,875 0.85

1,500,000 1,494,750 1.50
350,000 348,145 0.35
875,000 869,225 0.87

1,000,000 903,500 0.91
450,000 440,730 0.44
500,000 486,800 0.49

1,500,000 1,486,800 1.49

1,270,000 1,210,437 1.22
583,000 577,753 0.58
250,000 245,000 0.25
500,000 499,950 0.50

1,500,000 1,499,850 1.51

1,000,000 999,900 1.00
500,000 499,950 0.50

1,500,000 1,451,550 1.46
750,000 712,650 0.72

1,500,000 1,495,800 1.50
978,000 972,132 0.98

2,500,000 2,449,250 2.46

1,000,000 982,400 0.99

1,350,000 1,256,445 1.26
750,000 746,925 0.75

1,362,000 1,391,964 1.40
350,000 356,790 0.36
250,000 248,475 0.25

1,000,000 860,800 0.86

1,000,000 859,300 0.86
500,000 483,400 0.49
500,000 500,150 0.50
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2024 31 ()
Hypatia Ltd FRN 08-Apr-26 575,000 578,795 0.58
Integrity Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 750,000 412,500 0.41
Integrity Re 11 Ltd Series A FRN 12-Apr-28 750,000 3,690 0.00
Kendall Re Ltd FRN 02-May-24 1,250,000 1,191,750 1.20
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd FRN 20-Apr-26 250,000 227,950 0.23
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-24 2,140,000 1,885,603 1.89
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-26 2,140,000 1,885,603 1.89
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-24 790,000 743,390 0.75
Locke Tavern Re Ltd FRN 09-Apr-26 325,000 324,155 0.33
Longleaf Pine Re Ltd FRN 24-May-31 500,000 499,250 0.50
Marlon Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 500,000 499,950 0.50
Marlon Ltd FRN 09-Jun-31 250,000 249,975 0.25
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 07-Jun-24 750,000 747,750 0.75
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 24-Mar-25 2,000,000 1,913,600 1.92
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 08-Dec-25 1,500,000 1,305,000 1.31
Mona Lisa Re Ltd FRN 08-Jul-25 2,500,000 2,375,500 2.39
Montoya Re Ltd FRN 07-Apr-27 1,600,000 1,521,120 1.53
Mystic Re IV Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 2,200,000 2,119,260 2.13
Mystic Re IV Ltd FRN 08-Jan-26 1,000,000 1,022,200 1.03
Mystic Re IV Ltd FRN 08-Jan-27 2,643,000 2,608,112 2.62
Ocelot Re Ltd FRN 07-Jan-31 1,900,000 1,795,500 1.80
Palm Re Ltd Series A FRN 07-Jun-27 1,400,000 1,359,260 1.37
Pelican IV Re Ltd FRN 07-May-24 2,000,000 200 0.00
Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-26 3,500,000 337 0.00
Sanders Re Il Ltd Series B FRN 07-Apr-27 1,000,000 350,000 0.35
Stabilitas Re Ltd FRN 05-Jun-26 750,000 729,375 0.73
Sutter Re Ltd FRN 19-Jun-26 875,000 888,737 0.89
Tailwind Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 500,000 465,250 0.47
Tailwind Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,800,000 1,688,220 1.70
Tailwind Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,050,000 962,430 0.97
Titania Re Ltd A FRN 27-Dec-24 1,300,000 1,207,830 1.21
Titania Re Ltd FRN 27-Feb-26 250,000 255,350 0.26
Titania Re Ltd FRN 27-Feb-26 250,000 254,625 0.26
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-24 1,830,000 1,824,510 1.83
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 500,000 496,100 0.50
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2024 31 ()

Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 05-Jun-26 569,000 572,016 0.57
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 05-Jun-26 1,000,000 999,900 1.00
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 450,000 449,955 0.45
Ursa Re Il Ltd FRN 06-Dec-24 3,000,000 2,945,100 2.96
Ursa Re Il Ltd FRN 07-Dec-26 2,000,000 2,039,800 2.05
Ursa Re Il Ltd FRN 07-Dec-26 750,000 756,450 0.76
Veraison Re Ltd FRN 09-Mar-26 250,000 262,625 0.26
Vista Re Ltd FRN 21-May-25 1,000,000 970,000 0.97
Wrigley Re Ltd FRN 28-Jul-26 250,000 252,000 0.25
Yosemite Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 500,000 508,550 0.51
( 87,772,517 ) 77,910,704 78.25

Caelus Re VI Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 1,700,000 30 0.00
( 1,700,000 ) 30 0.00

Atlas Capital DAC FRN 05-Jun-26 1,500,000 1,458,000 1.46
Atlas Capital DAC FRN 08-Jun-27 250,000 249,975 0.25
Atlas Capital Re 2020 FRN 10-Jun-24 1,250,000 1,247,500 1.25
Atlas Capital Re 2022 DAC FRN 06-Jun-28 500,000 486,700 0.49
Orange Capital Re DAC FRN 08-Jan-27 500,000 549,530 0.55
Queen Street 2023 RE DAC FRN 08-Dec-25 1,115,000 1,102,289 1.11
( 5,162,390 ) 5,093,994 5.11

Catahoula Il Re Pte Ltd FRN 16-Jun-25 500,000 479,000 0.48
Easton Re Pte Ltd FRN 08-Jan-27 1,800,000 1,747,800 1.76
First Coast Re 11l Pte FRN 07-Apr-25 2,500,000 2,373,750 2.38
Hexagon 111 Re Pte Ltd FRN 15-Jan-26 1,000,000 1,031,320 1.04
Manatee Re 111 Pte Ltd A FRN 08-Jun-26 900,000 7,846 0.01
Totara Re Pte Ltd FRN 08-Jun-27 1,500,000 949,250 0.95
( 7,742,366 ) 6,588,966 6.62
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2024 31 ()
IBRD FRN 31-Mar-26 500,000 507,050 0.51
IBRD FRN 29-Dec-27 250,000 247,625 0.25
IBRD FRN 24-Apr-28 250,000 249,625 0.25
IBRD FRN 24-Apr-28 550,000 549,560 0.55
( 1,550,000 ) 1,553,860 1.56
Sussex Cap UK PCC Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,125,000 1,064,138 1.07
( 1,127,325 ) 1,064,138 1.07
Lightning RE Series 2023 FRN 31-Mar-26 1,500,000 1,491,750 1.50
( 1,561,931 ) 1,491,750 1.50

'¢ 106,616,529 ) 93,703,442 94.11
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
May 31, 2024

2024

Motes UsD
Assels
Investments in Master Fund, fair value (Cost: USD62,425,985) 23 04,532 230
Cash 2 777,197
Foreign curreney cash (Cost: USD417,913) 2 308 653
Other assets 3,355
Total Assets 65,711,444
Liahilities
Interest pavable 36
Fees payable o 122,011
Total Liabilities 122,047
Net Assets 65,589,397
Net Asset Value (“NAV™) per unit - Class USD Units
{based on Met Assets of USD44,263,672 and 421,890 units outstanding) UsSDI04.92
MAV per unit - Class JPY Hedged Units
{based on Met Assets of TPY3,351,231.036 and 329,430 units outstanding ) JPY10,173

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

8
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations
For the year ended Mayv 31, 2024

2024
MNaote UsD
Investment income
Interest ingome allocated from the Master Fund 6,031,755
Expenses allocated from the Master Fund 5 (422.15T)
MNet investment income allogated from the Master Fund 5,609, 598
Fund interest income 34,894
Total fund mcome 14 894
Expenses
Interest expense 592
Admmmstration fees 12,000
Manager fees 11,151
Investment Manager fees 156,181
Andit fees 19,387
Trustee fees 10,000
Distributor’ Agent Company fees 267,799
Legal fees 16,556
Custodian fiees 12,292
Other fees and expenses 54,700
Total find expenses 560,658
Net investment income 5,083,834
Net realized loss and change in unrealized appreciation
Realized loss:
Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and
forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund {2,887.9606)
Investments in secunties 56,TRS
Foreign currency transactions (64,071}
Met realized loss (2.895.250)
hange in unrealized appreciation:
Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and forward
currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund 93,540
Foreign currency transactions (19.522)
MWet change in unrealized appreciation 74,027
Net realized loss and change in unrealized appreciation (2,821,215)
Met increase in Met Assets resulting from operations z.z:&z,ma

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

9
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A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the year ended Mayv 31, 2024

Net increase in Net Assets resulting from operations

Met investment incoms

Wet realized loss on investments in secunties, foreign currency transactions
and ferward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund

Net realized gain on investments in securities

Met realized loss on foreign currency transactions

Net change in unrealized appreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Wet change in unrealized depreciation on foreign currency Iransactions

Met inerease in MNet Assets resulting from operations
Distributions to Unitholders:

Class USD Units
Class JPY Hedzed Umnits

Capital Transactions

Umits 1ssued - Class USD Umnits (212,100 umts)

Units issued - Class JPY Hedged Units (208,410 units)
Units redeemed - Class USD Urits (63,870 umts)

Units redeemed - Class JPY Hedged Units (21,650 units)
Met inerease in Met Assets resulting from capital transactions
Total increase in Net Assets

Net Assets
Beginning of vear

End of year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
10
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2024
UsD

5,083,834
(2,887,966)

56,785
(64.071)

93,549
(19.522)

2,262,609

(3,286,794)
{592,097

(3.879.791)

22,255,126
14,375,475
{6,008,519)
(1,537,131)
28,184,951

26,567,769

30,021,628

65,589,397
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the yvear ended May 31. 2024

2024
UsD
Cash Nows from operating activities
Wet increase in Met Assets resulting from operations 2,262,609
Adjustments to réconcile net inerease in Net Assets resulling from
operations to net cash used in operating activities:
Purchase of investments in the Master Fund (33,552, 208)
Sale of investments in the Master Fund 9,399,833
Met investment income allocated from the Master Fund {5,609, 598)
Net realized loss on investments in secunties, foreign currency transactions
and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund 2,887,966
Met change in unrealized appreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund (93, 549)
Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Decrease in other assets 19,753
Increase in interest payvable 8
Increase in fees payable 13,603
Met cash used in operating activities (24,671,583}
Cash Mlows provided by financing activities
Procesds from units issued 36,630,601
Payments for umts redeemed (8,445,650)
Distnbutions paid to Unitholders (3,879,791)
Net cash provided by financing activities 24.305.160
Wet change in cash and foreign cumency cash (366,423)
Cash and foreign currency cash at beginning of year 1.542.273
Cash and foreign currency cash at end of year 1,175,850
Supplementary information:
Interest received 34320
Interest paid (583}

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the year ended May 31. 2024
Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Units Umits
UsD JPY
Per Unit operating performance:
MNAV per unt, beginmng of vear 105.32 9,987
Income from investment operations (B)
Net investment imcome 11.35 1,283
Met realized and change in unrealized gainf{loss) 2.15 (45T)
Total from investment operations 13.50 820
Distributions {13.90) {640)
NAVY per unit, end of vear 104,92 10,173
Total Return (A) 12.81% 5.20%
Ratios/'supplemental data:
Ratio of expenses lo average MNet Assets (A)
Series Trust expenses (1.23%) (1.21%)
Allocated from the Master Fund
Operating expenses {0.89%) i1.00%)
Total expenses {2.12%) (2.22%)
Ratio of net investment income to average Net
Assels (A) 10.61% 12 .39%

{A) Total retum is caleulated based on the change in the NAV during the vear. Expenses ratios
and net investment income ratios are calculated based on the average Net Assets outstanding
throughout the year. The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and
operating expenses. Ratios between the two classes may vary due to class specific expenses.
The financial highlights are reflected afier all investment-related and operating expenses,
mncluding income and expenses allocated fom the Master Fund.

(B} Results may vary based on the timing of capital transactions. Per unif information is
calculated based upon the monthly average units outstanding during the year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2024

1. Description of the Trust

NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (the “Senes Trust™} is a senes trust of Offshore Strategy Fund, an
open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master Trust
Deed™), under the laws of the Cayman Islands. The Senes Trust was constituted by a supplemental
trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™) dated October 17, 2018, under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on November 15, 2018,

Internationial Management Services Ltd. (the “Manager™) serves as the Series Trust's Manager. The
Series Trust’s assets are managed on a day-to-day basiz by Franklin Templeton Japan Co., Ltd (the
“Investment Manager™). SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Admimstrator™) serves as the
Series Trust's Administrator.

The Senies Trust’s strategy is consistent with the strategy of NK CAT Bond Fund (the “Master
Fund”). The Series Trust’s investment objective 1s to seek to achieve risk adjusted absolute retuns
by gaining exposure to the performance of insurance linked bonds (being CAT Bonds). The Series
Trust seeks to achieve this investment objective through investing in the Master Fund, Accordingly,
the Senes Trust acts as a feeder fund into the Master Fund such that substantially all of the proceeds
from the sale of the units will be invested in the Master Fund, The Series Trust owns 65% of the
Master Fund at May 31, 2024,

The Master Fund’s financial statements are attached to and should be read in conjunction with the
Series Trust™s financial statemenis,

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, GAS. (Cayviman)
Limited {the “Trustee™) 15 named as Trustee of the Senes Trust,

On February 24, 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia’s invasion of Ukraine
carries significant risks for a world economy. There was no direct impact on the Series Trst at vear
ended May 31, 2024.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been preparad in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“U1.5. GAAP™). The preparation of financial
statements in accordance with UL S, GAAP requires the Series Trust’s management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and diselosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting perod. Actual results, including the ultimate amount realized upon the
sale of fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be
significant.

The Senes Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the Investment Company

accounting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) 946,
Financial Services-lnvestment Companies.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2024
{Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The following is a summary of significant accoumting policies followed by the Series Trust in
preparing the financial statements:

Valuation of Investments
The following valuation policy is applied in determnation of the value of the Senes Trust’s
investments:

The Senes Trust invests solely in the Master Fund whose oljective is to seek to achieve risk
adjusted absolute retums by investing in CAT Bonds. The Master Fund will seek to achieve its
investment objective by investing mainly in a global portfolio of CAT Bonds which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life and non-life insurance linked risk
including bt not limited to life insurance, motor insurance, operational risk, and manine and
aviation and cyber risk,

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a securities exchange, are not ordinarily traded
of exchanged through such securities exchanges or at the price available on such securities
exchanges. Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be valued using indicative secondary market hid
prices provided by reputable brokers or other competent persons selected in good faith by the
Master Fund’s investment manager,

Investments in the Master Fund were valued, as a practical expedient, utlizing the unaudited
net asset valuations provided by administrators, without adpsstment, when the net asset
valuwtions of the investments are calculated i a manner consistent wath U5, GAAP. The
attached andited Anancial statements of the Master Fund, which include the Master Fund’s
valuation and significant accounting policies are an integral part of these financial statements
and should be read in conjunction with the Series Trust’s financial statements, The
proporticmate share of income, expenses, gains and losses of the Master Fund is disclosed in the
Series Trust™s Statement of Operations for the vear endad May 31, 2024,

The Senes Trst records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the NAV per
share as reported by the Master Fund. Valuation of financial instnoments held by the Master
Fund are discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the May 31, 2024 Financial Statements of the
Master Fund.

Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Investment transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or sell is
executed), Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the first in first ot
cost method.

Interest income/expense on investments held/sold is acerued as camed'inewrred. Interest camed
on the Senes Trust’s brokerage account, if any, will be accrued monthly., Discounts and
premiums on Bonds are accretedamortized to maturity on an effective vield basis and reported
as part of interest income in the Statement of Operations.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2024
{Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an aceruals basis as incurred.

Foreign Currency Translation

Iterns which are included in the Series Trust’s financial statements, are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™),
this 15 United States Dollar (“USD™).

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on investments from the fluctuations ansing from changes in market
prices of securities held. Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealized
gain or loss from investments,

Cash and Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appeointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) as its
Custodian. Sumitomeo Mitsud Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch), has in furn, appointed
Brown Brothers Harmman & Co, (“BEH™) as their sub-custodian. Cash and foreign currency
comprise cash with original maturities of 3 months or less and are held at BBH as banker.

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains
or other taxes pavable by the Series Trust, In certain junsdictions other than the Cavman [slands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest received by the Series Trust.
Capital gains derived by the Senes Trust in such junsdictions generally will be exempt from
foreign capital gains tax {but may still be subject to capital gains tax in certain circumstances).
The Series Trust intends to conduct its affairs such that it will not be subject to income tax in
any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the financial
statements.

The Series Trust follows the authontative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uncertainty in tax positions { Financial Accounting Standards Board s ASC 740), which requires
management to determine whether a tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not to
be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authonty, ineluding resolution of any
related appeals or liigation processes, based on the techmeal ments of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized on the
financial statements 15 reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than ffty percent
likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority. The
Manager has determined that there is no effect on the financial statements being under this
authontative mudance.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalfof the Series Trost, enters into confracts
that contain a varety of representations, which provide general indemmnifications. The
Manager’s maximum exposire under these arrangements is unknown (although capped at the
WAV of the Senes Trust), as this would involve future claims that may be made against the
Manager that have not vet occurred. However, based on experience, the Manager expects the
nisk of loss to be remote.

ASC 480

ASC 480, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity™, recogmizes redemptions as Habilities, when the amount and number of
units requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. This generally may oceur at the fime
of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal penod, depending on the nature of the
request. Redemphons payable may be treated as capital for purposes of allocations of
gains/{losses) pursuwant to the Series Trust's governing documents. As at May 31, 2024, there
were no redemptions payable.

Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC B20, “Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures”, provides additional gwudance for
estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset o lability have significantly decreased and provides guidance on identifving
circumstances that indicate a transaction is not orderly.

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that priontizes the inputs to valuation techniques
used to measure fair value, The hierarchy gives the highest prionty to unadjusted listed prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs { Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 are as follows:

- Level 1 — Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or hability either
directly or indireetly, ineluding inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

- Level 3 = Inputs that are unobservable,

Inputs are used in applving the vanous valuation techmoues and breadly refer to the
assumptions that markel participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions
about fsk. A financial instrument’s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is sigmficant to the fior value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed
orupdated, reliable and venfiable, not proprietary and provided by independeant sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instnoment within the
hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessanly
correspond to the Investment Manager’s pereeived risk of that instrument.

1]
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3. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (comtinued)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foreign currency are classified as Level 1 with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2. As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and'or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquadity and’or non-transferability, which are gemerally based on available market
information.

Investments classified within Level 3 have sigmficant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all.

The following table presents the investment in the Series Trust carried on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2024:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assetls USD UsD UsD USD
[nvestment in Master Fumd - 64, 532,239 - 64,532 235
Total - 64,532,239 - 64,532,239

There were no transfers between the levels dunng the year.

4. Unit Capital
Class JPY
Class USD Hedged
Units Units
Number of units outstanding at June 1, 2023 273,660 142,670
Units issued dunng the year 212,100 208,410
Units redeemad during the vear (63.870) (21,6500
Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2024 421,890 329,430

One unitholder holds all of the units attributable to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hadgead
Units.
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4. Unit Capital (continued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USDI00 per Unit. Class JPY
Hedged Units were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit, The mimmum
subseniption amount per subscriber inrespect of each class of unit is 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 units may only be mads in ten Unit increments,

Subscnption proceeds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD class of Master Fund Shares. Subscrnipion proceeds resulting from the 1ssue of JPY
Hedged Units will be invested in the Class A JPY (Hedged) class of Master Fund Shares.

For subsequent subscriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per unit will be the
WAV per Unit of the relevant ¢lass of units on the “Valuation Day™ (Valuation Day means ¢ach
Friday, and where such day is not a business day, the business day immediately foll owing such
day, and the last calendar day of each calendar month, and where such day is not a business
day, the business day immediately preceding such day, and'or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time to time determing. For the avoidance of doubt, where the last calendar
day of the month is a Fnday and also not a business davy, the business day immediately
precading the last calendar day of that month will be a Valuation Day) falling on the relevant
subsenplion day.

The subscniption day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation Day of each
calendar month and/or such other day or days that the Manager may from tme to time
determing in respect of the Series Trust,

Units may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at each repurchase day.
The repurchase day for the Senes Trust shall be the first and third Valuation of each calendar
month andfor such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time determing in
respect of the Senies Trust.

The NAV per Unit is calculated by dividing the difference in value between the Series Trust’s
assets and Liakalities (including acerued fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number
of units outstanding. In the normmal course of events, gains and losses associated with currency
class hedging will be for the benefit or detniment of holders of the applicable non-U SD Master
Fund Shares only.

The Manager may declare and arrange for the pavment of distributions in respect of any class
of umits of such amount (if any) as shall be determined by the Manager, after consultation with
the Investment Manager, and approved by the Trustee,

The ex-distribution date will be the Valuation Day which immediately follows the relevant
distribution record date which is the second Friday of November in each year, providing that if
stch day is not a business day then the immediately following business day and/or such other
date or dates as the Manager may determuine in respect of any class of units. For the vear endad
May 31, 2024, the Series Trust distributed UUSD3,286,794 in respect of Class USD Units and
USDA92 997 in respect of Class JFY Hedged Units,
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Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions,
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the normal course of
business, The Manager, Trustes and related companies (a company that controls or is controlled
by the Manager or the Trustee, often one that is in the same business group) are deemed to be
related to the Series Trust, Fees incurrad with related parties during the year are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations. Amounts payable to related parties at the vear end are disclosed
in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities,

The Investment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
202415 USD329,980,

SMBC Nikko Securities Inc., holds 100% of all units in issue in the Class USD and Class IPY
Hedged. As a result, any actions of SMBC NMikko Securities Inc., can matenally impact the
Series Trust.

Fees and Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator receives out of the assets of the Senes Trust, a fee of USD 2,000 per annum
of the NAV, accrued as of each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

The Administrator is also entitled to; (a) an establishment fee of USDS5,000; (b) an annual fee
of USDA.000 in connection with provision of assistance in connection to the preparation of the
financial staternents of the Series Trust; (¢) ananmal fee of USD1,000 in connection with filing
the audited accounts of the Senes Trust with the Caviman Islands Monetary Authority, and (d)
an annual fee of USD1,000 in commection with facilitating the Manager or its delegate in the
preparation of certain reports and/or statements required for Japansse regulatory purposes.

Manager Fees
The Manager recerves out of the assets of the Senies Trust, a fee of 0.025% per annum of the
NAV, accrued and caleulated on cach Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears,

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fiee of 0,.35% per annum
of the NAV, accrued and calculated on each Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears.

Investment Advisor Fees
The Investment Manager is responsible for covening the fees of the Investment Advisor directly
out of their fee and there 15 no change to the fizes already in place.

Trustee Fees
The Trstee receives out of the assets of the Senies Trust, a fee of USD10.000 per anmim
accred as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.
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6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

7

Distributor/Agent Company Fees
The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.50% per annum of the
NAV, accrued and calculated on each Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears.

The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of §.10% per annum
of the NAV, accrued and caleulated on each Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears,

Custodian Fees

The Custodian is entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Series Trust, management and
transaction fees. The Custodian’s safe keeping fees are USD750 per month, accrued on each
Valuation Day and pavable menthly in arrears. The transaction fees will be at customary rates
as agreed between the Trustee and the Custodian,

The fees payable as at May 31, 2024 are as follows:

USD

Adrministration fees 1.024
Manager fees 1,379
Investment Manager fiees 19,324
Audit fees 18,392
Trustee fees 253
Dastnbutor/ Agent Company fees 33,130
Custodian fees 2,164
Other fees and expenses 45,743
122,011

Financial Risk Management

The Series Trust’s activities expose it to a vanety of financial risks: market nisk {including
curreney nsk), credit risk and liquidity nsk.

Market Risk
The Senes Trust invests solely in the Master Fund. All imvestments present a nisk of loss of
capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of investments.

The value of the Senes Trust's investments are affected by a number of factors, including but
not limited to, changes in the wider economy, financial and currency markets and foreign
currency exchange rates.

In a falling market emvironment, the value of the investments held by the Series Trust may
decline, and as a result, the MAV may decline below its initial principal amount. Also, adverse
developments in an issuer’s economic conditions or such negative events as bankmiptey may
canse the value of the equities to decling substantially and may significantly impact the NAV.
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7. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk (continued)

Crrrency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and non-monetary asssts and incur monetary and non-
monetary liabilities denominated in cumencies other than USD, It may therefore be exposed to
currency risk, as the value of the assets and liabilities denominated n other currencies will
fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates,

If investing in the securities of companies that are denominated in non-USD currencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencies
may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of those secunties.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trost would ineur if the counterparties
failed to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Series Trust.

Although the Trustee monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropriate custodian,
there is no guarantee that this or any custodian that the Senes Trust may use from time to time,
will not become insolvent, the result of which could lead to losses for the Senes Trust, The
Custodian is the London branch of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited which has a Fitch
credit rating of A-. The sub-custodian 1s EBH which has a Fitch credit rating of A+,

While there are codes and acts to protect customer property in the event of a fadlure, insolvency
or liquidation of an institution, there 15 no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an institution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Senes Trust would not incur losses due to its assets
being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both,
Because all of the Series Trust’s cash is in custody with a single institution, such losses could
be significant and could matenally impair the ability of the Series Trust to achieve its
investment objective. The Series Trust is subject to credit sk to the extent that this institution
may be unable to fulfil its obligations to repay amounts owed.

Liguidity Risk

Investors should be aware that the value of units might fall as well as rise. Investment in the
Senies Trust involves a degree of nsk; there can be no assurance that the Series Trust's
investment objective will be achieved.

The Series Trust is exposed to repurchase of its units but management believes that the Series
Trust has sufficient resources to meet the present and foresecable needs of s business
operations and, 1f necessary, the liquadity to fund repurchases and achieve a market posinon
appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position is monitored continually by
management to ensure that the Senes Trust has the abality to meet its obligations.

The Series Trust may temporanly suspend the caleulation of the NAY and therefore, the right
of redemptions and subscriptions of offered units in exceptional circumstances. No issue or
tedemption of wnits will take place during any period when the caleulation of the NAV is
suspended.
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7. Financial Risk Management (continued)

10.

11

Ligquidity Risk (continued)

The risk of being unable to redeem from the Master Fund is a Senes Trust specific nisk. The
potential inability to redeem out of the Master Fund is a nsk for the Series Trust’s investors,
eapecially given the NAV of the Series Trust is derived from the ownership of the Master Fund,
Commitments and Contingencies

As at May 31, 2024, the Series Trust had no other commitments or confingencies,

Exchange rates used in this Report

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one USD as at
May 31, 2024

Japangse Yen 15714500
Recent Pronouncements
There were no recent pronouncements during the year ended May 31, 2024,
Subsequent Events

Management performed a subsequent events review up to September 30, 2024, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued.

Effective June 1, 2024 through to September 30, 2024 investors subscribed USD26,637,728 in
respect of Class USD Units and USD4,012,094 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units into the
Series Trust and investors redeemed UUSD2.839.20] in respect of Class USD Umnits and
USD1. 708,222 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Unats from the Senes Trust.

Effective June 24, 2024, the Investment Advisor of the Senes Trust changed their address to
100 First Stamford Place, 5% Floor, Stamford, Connecticut 06902,

Management concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved by the Trustee on September 30, 2024,
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Fair
Nominal Value Yo of
Investment in the Master Fund Holding USD NAV
Cayman Islands
NK CAT Bond Fund Class A JPY (Hedged)
IPY Shares 286,287 22.411.400 34.17
usp WK CAT Bond Fund Class A USD Shares 295,647 42,120,839 64.22
Total Investment in the Master Fund
(Cost: USD62,425,985) 04,532,239 93.39
Symbol Currency Country
Py Japanese Yen Japan
UsD LS. Dollar United States

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Fair

MNominal Value % of
CAT Bonds Holding UsSD MNAV
Bermuda
2001 Cat RE Ltd FRN 08-Jan-27 1, 60RO 1,589 600 1.6
Alamo Re Lid FEN 07-Jun-25 500,000 486,400 0.49
Alamo Re Lid FEN 07-Jun-26 566,000 561,585 0.56
Alamo Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-26 820,000 811,800 0.82
Alamo Re Ltd FEN 07-Jun-27 2,000,000 1,980,000 1.99
Alamo Re Lid FEN 07-Jun-27 1,165,000 1,153,350 .16
Aquila Re Ltd 2023-1 FEN 07-Jun-27 850,000 B47 875 0.85
Armor Re 11 Ltd FRN 07-May-27 1,500,000 1,494,750 1.50
Bavou Re Ltd FEN 30-Apr-27 350,000 348.145 0.35
Bavou Re Ltd FRN 26-May-30 875,000 869,325 0.87
Blue Halo Re Ltd FEN 24-Feb-25 1, 00K, O L3 500 0.91
Blue Ridge Re Litd FRN 08-Jan-27 450,004 440,730 0.44
Bowline Re 2018 Series A FRN 23-May-25 500,000 ABo6 800 0.49
Cape Lockout Re Lid FEN 28-Ape-26 1,500,000 1,486,800 1.49
Cape Lookout Re Ltd FRN 05-Apr-27 1,270,000 1,210,437 1.22
Citrus Re Ltd FRN 07-hm-26 S83,00 577,753 0.58
Citrus Re Litd FRN 07-hm-27 250000 245 000 0.25
Everglades Re 11 Lid FRN 13-May-27 500,000 499 950 0.50
Everglades Re Il Ltd FRN 13-May-27 1,500, 000 1,499 850 1.51
Everglades Re 11 Ltd FRN 13-May-27 1,00, D0 900,900 1.00
Everglades Re 11 Ltd FRN 19-May-25 500,000 499 950 0.50
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd A FRN 25-Feb-25 1,500,000 1,451,550 1.46
Floods-Mar-t Re Ltd B FEN 25-Feb-25 750000 712 650 0.72
Foundation Re [V Lid FRN 08-Jan-27 1,500,004 1,495,800 1.50
Four Lakes Re Ltd FEN 07-Jan-27 Q78,000 072,132 0.98
Galileo Re Ltd 08-Jan-26 2,500,000 2.449.250 2.46
Galileo Re Ltd 07-Jan-28 1,000, 0 982,400 0.99
Gateway Re Lid 0% 23-Dee-24 1,350,000 1,256,445 1.26
Gateway Re Ltd FEN 12-May-25 750,000 T46.925 0.75
Gateway Re Ltd FRN 24-Feb-26 1,362,000 1,391.964 1.40
Gateway Re Il Ltd FRN 27-Apr-26 350,000 356,790 0.3a
Gateway Re Ltd FEN 30-Jun-26 250,000 248,475 0.25
Herbie Re Lid FRN 08-Jan-32 1,00, 200 800 0.86
Herbie Re Lid FRMN 08-Jan-32 1,006, 000 859 300 0.86
Hestia Re Ltd A FRN 22-Apr-25 500,000 483,400 0.49
Hestia Re Ltd A FEN 07-Apr-26 500,000 500,150 0.50

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finanecial statements.
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{Continued)
Fair

MNominal Value % of
CAT Bonds (continued) Holding UsD NAY
Bermuda (continued)
Hypata Lid FRN 08-Apr-26 575,000 578,795 (.58
Integrity Re Ltd FRN 06-lun-25 750,000 412,500 0.41
Integrity Re I Ltd Series A FRN 12-Apr-28 750,000 3,690 .00
Kendall Re Ltd FEN 02-May-24 1,250,000 1,191,750 1.20
Kilimanjare 11 Re Ltd FRN 20-Apr-26 250,000 227,950 0,23
Kilimangaro Il Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-24 2,140,000 1. 885.603 1.89
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series A FRN 19-Dec-26 2,140,000 1,885,603 1.89
Kilimanjaro 111 Re Ltd Series B FRN 19-Dec-24 T, Q00 743,300 0.75
Locke Tavem Re Ltd FEM 0%-Apr-26 325,000 324,155 0.33
Longleaf Pine Re Lid FEN 24-May-31 500,000 499 250 0.50
Marlon Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 S00,000 499,950 0.50
Marlon Ltd FRN 09-Jun-31 250 000 249975 0.25
Matterhomn Re Cat 0% 07-Jun-24 750,000 747.750 0.75
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 24-Mar-25 2,000,000 1,913,600 1.92
Matterhorn Re Cat 0% 08-Dec-25 1,500,000 1,305,000 1.31
Mona Lisa Re Ltd FRMN 08-Jul-25 2500000 2,375,500 2.39
Montoya Re Ltd FRN 07-Apr-27 1,600,000 1,521,120 .53
Mystic Re IV Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 2,200,000 2,119,260 2.13
Mystic Re IV Ltd FEN 08-Jan-26 1.000.000 1,022,200 1.03
Mystic Re IV Ltd FRN 08-Jan-27 2,643,000 2,608,112 2.62
Ocelot Re Ltd FRN 07-Jan-31 1,900,000 1,795,500 1.80
Palm Re Ltd Senes A FEN 07-Jun-27 1400000 1,350 260 1.37
Pelican IV Re Lid FRN 07-May-24 2,000,000 200 (.00
Sanders Re Il Ltd Senies B FRN 07-Apr-26 3,500,000 337 .00
Sanders Re 11 Ltd Senies B FRN 07-Apr-27 1,00 350,000 0.35
Stabilitas Re Ltd FEN 05-Jun-26 750,000 729,375 0.73
Sutter Re Lad FEN 19-Jun-26 875,000 8RR, 737 0,89
Tailwind Re Ltd FEM 08-Jan-25 500000 465 250 0.47
Tailwind Re Ltd FRN 08-Jan-25 1,800,000 1.688,220 1.70
Tallwind Re Ltd FEM 08-Jan-25 1,050 000 962,430 0.97
Titarma Re Ltd A FRN 27-Dec-24 1,300,000 1,207,830 1.21
Titama Re Ltd FRMN 27-Feb-26 250,000 255,350 .20
Titania Re Ltd FRN 27-Feh-26 250,000 254,625 0,26
Torrey Pines Re Litd FRN 07-Jun-24 1E30. 000 1,824,510 1.83
Taorrey Pines Re Lid FRN 06-Jun-25 500,000 494,100 0,50

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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{Continued)
Fair
MNominal Value Yo of

CAT Bonds (continued) Holding USsD MNAV
Bermuda (continued)
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 05-Jun-26 569,000 572,016 0.57
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 05-Jun-26 1,000,000 999,900 1.00
Torrey Pines Re Ltd FRN 07-Jun-27 450,000 449 955 0.45
Ursa Re 11 Ltd FEN Oa-Dec-24 3,000,000 2945100 2.9a
Ursa Re 11 Lid FRN 07-Dec-26 2,000,000 2,039,800 2.05
Ursa Re 11 Ltd FEN (7-Dec-26 750,000 756,450 0.7a
Veraison Re Lid FEN 02-Mar-26 250,000 202,025 0.26

‘ista Re Ltd FRN 21-May-23 1,000,000 Q70,000 0.97
Wrigley Re Ltd FRN 28-Jul-26 230,000 252,000 0.25
Yosemite Re Ltd FRN 06-Jun-25 SO 000 508,550 0.51
Total Bermuda (Cost: USD87,772,517) 77,910,704 7825
Cayman [slands
Caelus Re VI Ltd FRN 07-hmn-27 1,700,000 30 0.00
Total Cayman Islands (Cost: USD1,700,000) 30 0.00
Ireland
Aflas Capital DAC FRN 05-Jun-26 1,500,000 1,458,000 1.46
Atlas Capital DAC FEN 08-Jun-27 250,000 249975 0.25
Aflas Capital Re 2020 FRN 10-Jun-24 1,250,000 1,247,500 1.25
Aflas Capital Re 2022 DAC FRN 06-Jun-28 500,000 486,700 0,49
Orange Capital Re DAC FRN 08-Jan-27 SO0,000 549,530 0.55
Queen Street 2023 RE DAC FRM 08-Dec-25 1115000 1,102,289 1.11
Total Ireland (Cost: USDS,162,390) 5,093,994 311
Singapore
Catahoula 11 Re Pte Ltd FEN 16-Jun-25 S00,000 479,000 048
Easton Re Pte Lid FRN 08-Jan-27 1.800.000 1,747,800 1.76
First Coast Re 111 Pte FRN 07-Apr-25 2,500,000 2373750 238
Hexagon 111 Re Pte Ltd FRN 13-Jan-26 1,000,000 1.031.320 1.04
Manatee Re I Pre Lid A FEN 08-Jun-26 Q00,000 7846 0.01
Totara Rz Pte Ltd FRN 08-Jun-27 1,500,000 049,250 0,95
Total Singapore (Cost: USD7,742,366) 6,588,966 0,62

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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{ Continued)

Fair

MNomimal Value % of
CAT Bonds {continued) Holding UsD NAV
Supranational
IBRD FEN 31-Mar-26 300,000 07,050 0.51
IBRD FRN 29-Dec-27 250,000 247,625 0.25
IBRD FRM 24-Apr-28 250,000 240,625 025
IBRD FRN 24-Apr-28 550,000 549 560 .55
Total Supranational (Cost: USD1,550,000) 1,553 860 1.56
United Kingdom
Sussex Cap UK PCC Ltd FREN 08-Jan-25 1,125,000 1,064,138 1.07
Total United Kingdom (Cost: USD1,127,325) 1,064,138 1.07
United States
Lightming RE Series 2023 FEN 31-Mar-26 1,500,000 491,750 1.50
Total United States (Cost: USD1,561,931) 1,491,750 1.50
Total CAT Bonds (Cost: USD106,616,529 093,703,442 94.11

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements,
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2023 31
2023 31
2023
36,586,729 2,3 37,564,683 5,361,607
2 1,429,200 203,990
112,811 2 113,073 16,139
23,108 3,298
39,130,064 5,585,034
28 4
6 108,408 15,473
108,436 15,477
39,021,628 5,569,557
NAV
28,822,906
273,660 105.32 15,032
NAV
1,424,914,408

142,670 9,987

2023 21
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2023 31
2023
5,121,230 730,953
5 (390, 810) (55,780)
4,730,420 675,173
10,480 1,496
10,480 1,496
366 52
12,000 1,713
10,025 1,431
140,349 20,032
17,668 2,522
10,000 1,427
240,544 34,333
25,608 3,655
11,769 1,680
85,678 12,229
554,007 79,073
4,186,893 597,595
(3,463,319) (494,320)
15,817 2,258
(29,784) (4,251)
(3,477,286) (496,313)
(1,560, 235) (222,692)
8,240 1,176

(1,551,995) (221,516)
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(842,388) (120,234)
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2023 31
2023
4,186,893 597,595
(3,463,319) (494,320)
15,817 2,258
(29,784) (4,251)
(1,560,235) (222,692)
8,240 1,176
(842,388) (120,234)
26,560 2,745,024 391,797
5,000 356,052 50,819
114,340 (11,309,527)  (1,614,209)
61,820 (4,163,930) (594,318)
(12,372,381)  (1,765,910)
(13,214,769)  (1,886,144)
52,236,397 7,455,701
39,021,628 5,569,557
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2023
(842,388) (120,234)
(1,524,898) (217,649)
15,491,633 2,211,121
(4,730,419) (675,173)
3,463,319 494,320
1,560,235 222,692
41,793 5,965
(64) ®
(3,181) (454)
13,456,030 1,920,579
3,101,076 442,617
(15,473,457)  (2,208,527)
(12,372,381)  (1,765,910)
1,083,649 154,669
458,624 65,459
1,542,273 220,129
7,903 1,128
(430) (61)
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101.49 10,030
9.89 1,139
(6.06) (1,182)

3.83 43)
105.32 9,987

3.78% (0.43%)
(1.40%) (1.42%)
(0.94%) (1.11%)
(2.34%) (2.53%)
10.06% 12.04%
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DocuSign Envelope ID: 4B37A515-TA26-4030-83EC-30ABABF IS IF

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Assets and Liabilities
May 31, 2023

2023

Notes UshD
Assets
Investments in Master Fund, far value (Cost: USD36,586,729) 23 37,564 683
Cash 2 1,426 200
Foreign currency cash (Cost: USD112.811) 2 113,073
Other assets 23108
Total Assels 39,130,064
Liabilities
Intarest pavable 28
Fees payable 6 108,408
Total Liabilities 108,436
Net Assets 39,021,628
Met Asset Value (“NAV™) per unit - Class USD Units
(based on Met Assets of USD28,822,906 and 273,660 units outstanding) LSDI05.32
MAY per unit - Class JPY Hedged Units
(based on Net Assets of JPY1,424,914,408 and 142,670 units outstanding ) JFY9.987

Signed on behalf of the Trustee

(onar (i Dol 0'busf

Date; September 21, 2023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial staternents.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Operations
For the vear ended May 31, 2023

2023
Note USD
Investment income
Interest income allocated from the Master Fund 5,121,230
Expenses allocated from the Master Fund 5 (390.810)
Wet investment income allocated from the Master Fund 4,730,420
Fund interest income 10 480
Total fund income 10480
Expenses
Interest expense 366
Administration fees 12,000
Manager fees 10,025
[nvestment Manager fees 140,349
Aundit fees 17,668
Trustes fees 10,000
Distributor/ Agent Company fees 240,544
Legal fees 25,608
Custodian fees 11,769
Other fees and expenses 85.678
Total fund expenses 554,007
MNet investment income 4,180,593
Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation
Realized loss:
[nvestments in secunties, foreign curreney transactions and
forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund {3,463.319)
Investments in securities 15817
Foreign curreney transactions (20.784)
Met realized loss (3.477,286)
Change in unrealized depreciation:
Investments in securities, foreign currency transactions and forward
currency contracts allecated from the Master Fund {1,560.235)
Foreign currency transachons 8,240
Met change in unrealized depreciation (1.551,995)
Net realized loss and change in unrealized depreciation (5,029,281)
Net decrease in Net Assets resulting firom operations 5842:353!

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

9
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Changes in Net Assets
For the vear ended May 31, 2023

Net decrease in Net Assets resulting from operations

Met investment income

Net realized loss on investments in secunties, foreign currency transactions
and forward currency contracts allocated from the Master Fund

Met realized gain on investments in securities

Met realized loss on foreign currency transactions

Met change in unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
cuwrrency transactions and forward ewrrency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Met change in unrealized appreciation on foreign currency transactions

Met decrease in MWet Assets resulting from operations

Capital Transactions

Units issued - Class USD Units (26,560 units)

Units issued - Class IPY Hedged Units (5,000 units)

Units redeemed - Class USD Urats (114,340 unmits)

Units redeemed - Class JPY Hedged Units (61,820 units)

Met decreass in Met Assets resulting from capital transactions
Total decrease in Met Assets

Met Assets
Beminming of year

End of year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
10
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4,186,853
{3.463.319)

15,817
(29,7843
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND

A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended May 31, 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Met decrease in Net Assets resulting from operations

Adjustments to reconcile net decrease in Net Assets resulting from
operations to net cash provided by operating activities:

Purchase of investments in the Master Fund

Sale of investments in the Master Fund

Met investment income allocated from the Master Fund

Met realized loss on investments in securities, foreign currency transactions
and forward cummency contracts allocated from the Master Fund

Met change in unrealized depreciation on investments in securities, foreign
currency transactions and forward currency contracts allocated from the
Master Fund

Change in assets and liabilities related to operations:
Diecrease in other assets

Decrease in interest pavable

Decrease in fees pavable

Met cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows provided by financing activities

Proceeds from units issued

Payments for umts redeemed

Met cash used in financing activities

Met change in cash and foreign cumrency cash
Cash and foreign cuwrrency cash at beginning of year

Cash and foreign currency cash at end of year
Supplementary information:

Interast received
Interest paid

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Financial Highlights
For the year ended May 31, 2023

Clasz JPY
Class USD Hedged
Units Units
USD JPY
Per Unit operating performance:
NAV per unit, beginning of year 101.49 10,030
Income from investment operations (B)
MNet investment incoms 9.89 1,139
Met realized and change in unrealized loss {6.06) (1,181
Total from investment operations 383 (43)
MAW per unit, end of vear 105.32 9,987
Total Retum {A) 3.78% {0,43%)
Ratios'supplemental data:
Ratio of expenses to average Met Assets (A)
Series Trust expensss {1.40%) (1,42%)
Allocated from the Master Fund
Operating expenses {0.94%) (1.11%)
Total expenses (2.34%) {2.53%)
Ratio of net investment income to average Net
Assets (A) 10.06% 12.04%

{A) Total return is calculated based on the change in the NAY dunng the vear, Expenses ratios
and net investment income ratios are calculated based on the average Met Assets outstanding
throughout the vear. The financial highlights are reflected after all investment-related and
operating expenses. Ratios between the two classes may vary due to class specific expenses,
The financial highhghts are reflected after all investment-related and operating expenses,
ineluding income and expenses allocated from the Master Fund.

{B) Results may vary based on the tming of capital transactions, Per urnit information is
caleulated based upon the monthly average units outstanding during the year,

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements
May 31, 2023

1. Description of the Trust

MK Premium CAT Bond Fund (the “Series Trust™) s a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund, an
open-ended unit trust established by a master trust deed dated July 29, 2016 (the “Master Trust
Deed™), under the laws of the Cayvman Islands, The Series Trust was constituted by a supplemental
trust deed (the “Supplemental Trust Deed™) dated October 17, 2018, under the laws of the Cayinan
Islands. The Series Trust commenced operations on Movember 15, 2018

International Management Services Lid. (the “Manager™) serves as the Series Trust’s Manager. The
Series Trust’s assets are managed on a day-to-day basis by Franklin Templeton Japan Co., Lid (the
“Investment Manager™). SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Administrator™) serves as the
Series Trust’s Admimstrator.

The Series Trust’s strategy is consistent with the strategy of NK CAT Bond Fund (the “Master
Fund™). The Senes Trust’s investment objective 1s o seek to achieve risk adjusted absolute retums
by gaining exposure to the performance of insurance linked bonds (bemng CAT Bonds), The Series
Trust seeks to achieve this investment objective through investing in the Master Fund, Accordingly,
the Series Trust acts as a feeder fund into the Master Fund such that substantially all of the procesds
from the sale of the Units will be invested in the Master Fund. The Senies Trust owns 53% of the
Master Fund at May 31, 2023,

The Master Fund’s financial statements are attached to and should be read in conjunction with the
Senes Trust’s financial statements,

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, G.AS. (Cayman)
Limited {the “Trustez™) is named as Trustee of the Series Trust.

On Febmary 24, 2022, Russia launched a military invasion into Ukraine. Russia’s invasion of Ukraine
carries significant risks for a world economy. There was no direct impact on the Series Trust at year
ended May 31, 2023,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“U. S, GAAP™). The preparation of fimancial
statements in accordance with U5, GAAP requires the Series Trust's management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting perniod. Actual results, including the ultimate amount realized upon the
sale of fair valued investments, could differ from those estimates and such differences may be
significant,

The Series Trust is an investment company and accordingly follows the Investment Company
accounting and reporting guidance of the Financial Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC™) 946,
Financial Services-Investment Companies.

13
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies followed by the Senes Trust in
preparing the financial statements:

Valuation of Investments
The following valuation policy is applied in determination of the value of the Senes Trust's
investments:

The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund whose objective is to seek to achieve risk
adjusted absolute returns by investing in CAT Bonds. The Master Fund will seck to achieve its
investment objective by investing mainly in a global portfolio of CAT Bonds which will mainly
provide exposure to natural catastrophe events and other life and non-life insurance linked nsk
including but not limited to life insurance, motor insurance, operational risk, and marineg and
aviation and cvber nisk.

CAT Bonds, although often listed or quoted on a secunties exchange, are not ordinanly traded
or exchanged through such securities exchanges or at the price available on such secunties
exchanges. Accordingly, CAT Bonds will be valued using indicative secondary market bid
prices provided by reputable brokers or other competent persons selected in good faith by the
Master Fund’s investment manager.

Investments in the Master Fund were valued, as a practical expedient, utilizing the unaudited
net asset valuations provided by administrators, without adjustment, when the net assst
valuations of the investments are calculated in a manner consistent with LS. GAAP, The
attached audited financial statements of the Master Fund, which include the Master Fund’s
valuation and significant accounting policies are an integral part of these financial statements
and should be read i comunction with the Series Trust’s financial statements. The
proportionate share of income, expenses, gains and losses of the Master Fund is disclosed in the
Series Trust's Statement of Operations for the year ended May 31, 2023

The Series Trust records its investment in the Master Fund at fair value, based on the NAV per
share as reported by the Master Fund. Valuation of financial instruments held by the Master
Fund are discussed in Note 2 in the Notes to the May 31, 2023 Financial Statements of the
Master Fund.

Investment Transactions and Investment Income

Investmeant transactions are accounted for on a trade-date basis (date the order to buy or s2ll is
executed), Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the first in first out
cost method.

Interest income/expense on investments held/sold is acorued as eamed/incurred. Interest camed
on the Senes Trust’s brokerage account, if any, will be acerued monthly. Discounts and

premiums on Bonds are accreted/amortized to maturity on an effective vield basis and reported
as part of interest income in the Statement of Chperations.

14
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Expenses
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as incurred,

Foreign Currency Translation

Items which are included in the Series Trust’s financial statements, are measured using the
eurrency of the primary economie environment in which it operates (the “functional currency™)
this is Urnnted States Daollar (~USD™.

The Series Trust does not isolate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes
in foreign exchange rates on investiments from the fluchmtions arising from changes in market
prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are included with the net realized and unrealizad
gain or loss from investments,

Cash and Foreign Currency

The Trustee has appointed Sumitomo Mitswn Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch) as its sub-
custodian. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch), has in tum, appointed
Brown Brothers Hariman & Co. (“BEH™) as their global sub-custodian. Cash and foreign
currency comprise cash with original maturities of 3 months or less and are held at BBH as
banker.

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman [slands, there are no income, withholding, capital gains
or other taxes pavable by the Series Trust, In certain junisdictions other than the Caviman Islands,
foreign taxes may be withheld at source on dividends and interest receivad by the Series Trust,
Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such junisdictions generally will be exempt from
foreign capital gains tax (but may still be subject to capital gains tax in certain circumstances).
The Senes Trust intends to conduet its affairs such that 1t will not be subject to income tax in
any junsdicion. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the financial
statements.

The Series Trust follows the authoritative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of
uneertainty in tax positions {Financial Accounting Standards Board’s ASC 740), which requires
management to determine whether a tax position of the Series Trust is more likely than not o
be sustained upon examination by the applicable taxing authonty, including resclution of any
related appeals or liigation processes, based on the technical ments of the position.

For tax positions meeting the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized on the
financial statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifiv percent
likelihood of being realized upon ullimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority. The
Manager has determined that there is no effeet on the financial statements being under this
authoritative guidance.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Guarantees and/or Indemnifications

In the normal course of business the Manager, on behalf of the Series Trust, enters info contracts
that contain a varnety of representations, which provide general indemmnifications. The
Manager’s maximum exposure under these arangements is unknown (although capped at the
MAV of the Series Trust), as this would involve future elaims that may be made against the
Manager that have not vet ocowrred. However, based on expenence, the Manager expects the
risk of loss to be remote.

ASC 480

ASC 480, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of Both
Liabilities and Equity™, recognizes redemptions as liabilities, when the amount and mumber of
units requested in the redemption notice becomes fixed. This generally mayv oceur at the time
of the receipt of the notice, or on the last day of a fiscal penod, depending on the nature of the
request. Redemptions payable may be treated as capital for purposes of allocations of
gains{losses) pursuant to the Series Trust’s governing docurnents. As at May 31, 2023, there
were no redemptions payable,

3. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

ASC B20, “Fair Value Measuwrements and Disclosures™, provides additional gudance for
estimating fair value in accordance with ASC 820 when the volume and level of activity for the
asset or liability have significantly decreased and provides guidance on identifving
circumstances that indicate a transaction is not ordzrly,

ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy that prionitizes the inputs to valuation technigues
used to measure far value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted listed prices
mn active markets for idenhical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

The three levels of the fair value hierarchy under ASC 820 are as follows:

- Level 1 - Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the Series Trust has the ability to aceess at the measurement date;

- Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either
directly or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active;

- Level 3 - Inputs that are unohservable,

Inputs are wsed in applyving the vanous valuation techmiques and broadly refer to the
assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions, including assumptions
about risk. A financial instrument’s level within the far value hierarchy is based on the lowest
level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Investment Manager
considers observable data to be that market data which is readily available, regularly distributed
orupdated, reliable and verifiable, not proprietary and provided by independant sources that are
actively involved in the relevant market. The categorization of a financial instrument within the
higrarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspond to the Investment Manager’s perceived risk of that instroment.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

X Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (continued)

Investments whose values are based on quoted market prices in active markets are classified
within Level 1.

Cash and foreign currency are classified as Level | with all receivables and payables classified
as Level 2.

Investments that trade in markets that are not considered to be active, but are valued based on
quoted market prices, dealer quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable
inputs are classified within Level 2, As Level 2 investments include positions that are not traded
in active markets and/or are subject to transfer restrictions, valuations may be adjusted to reflect
illiquidity and'or non-transferability, which are generally based on available market
informeation.

Investments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade
infrequently or not at all.

The following table presents the investment in the Senes Trust carried on the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities by level within the valuation hierarchy as of May 31, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assels UsD UsD USD USD
Investment in Master Fund - 37,564,683 - 37.564.083
Total - 37,564,683 - 37,564,683

There were no transfers between the levels dunng the year.

4. Unit Capital

Class JPY

Class USD Hedged

U nits Units

Mumber of units outstanding at June 1, 2022 361,440 199,490

Uinits issued during the year 26,560 5,000
Units redeemed during the year 114,3407 (61,820)

Number of units outstanding at May 31, 2023 273,660 142,670

One unitholder holds all of the Umnits atmbutable to Class USD Units and Class JPY Hedged
Units.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

4.  Unit Capital (confinued)

Class USD Units were first issued at an initial issue price of USD100 per Unit, Class JPY
Hedged Units were first issued at an initial issue price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. The mininum
subscription amount per subscriber inrespect of each class of umitis 100 units, and subscriptions
for more than 100 Units may only be made in ten Unit increments.

Subseription proveeds resulting from the issue of USD Units will be invested in the Class A
USD class of Master Fund Shares. Subscription proceeds resuling from the issue of IPY
Hedged Units will be invested in the Class A JPY (Hedged) class of Master Fund Shares.

For subsequent subscriptions by existing unitholders, the purchase price per unit will be the
MAY per Unit of the relevant class of units om the “Valuation Day™ (Valuation Day means each
Friday, and where such day is not a business day, the business day immediately following such
day, and the last calendar day of each calendar month, and where such day is not a business
day, the business day immediately preceding such day, and’or such other day or days as the
Manager may from time to time determine, For the avoidance of doubt, where the last calendar
day of the month is a Friday and also not a business day, the business day immediately
preceding the last calendar day of that month will be a Valuation Day) falling on the relevant
subscription day.

The subscription day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation Day of each
calendar month andior such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time
determing in respect of the Series Trust.

Linits may be submitted for repurchase at the option of Unitholders as at each repurchase day,
The repurchase day for the Series Trust shall be the first and third Valuation of each calendar
month and/or such other day or days that the Manager may from time to time determine in

respect of the Serles Trust.

The NAVY per Umt 15 calculated by dividing the difference in value between the Series Trust’s
assets and labilities (including accrued fees and expenses of the Series Trust) by the number
of Units outstanding. In the normal cowrse of events, gains and losses associated with currency
class hedging will be for the benefit or detriment of holders of the applicable non-USD Master
Fund Shares only.

The Manager may declare and arrange for the payment of dismbutions in respect of any class
of units of such amount {if any) as shall be determined by the Manager, after consultation with
the Investment Manager, and approved by the Trustee.

The ex-distribution date will be the Valuation Day which immediately follows the relevant
distribution record date which is the second Friday of November in each year, providing that if
such day is not a business day then the immediately following business day and/or such other
date or dates as the Manager may determine in respect of any class of Units. For the vear ended
May 31, 2023, there were no distributions inrespect of Class USD Umnits and Class IPY Hedged
Units.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

5. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial or operational decisions.
There were no transactions with related parties other than those in the nommal course of
business. The Manager, Trustee and related companies (a company that controls or is controlled
by the Manager or the Trustee, often one that is in the same business group) are deemed (o be
related to the Series Trust. Fees incurred with related parties during the vear are disclosed in
the Statement of Operations. Amounts pavable to related parties at the vear end are disclosed
in the Statermnent of Assets and Liabilities.

The Inwestment Manager fee allocated from the Master Fund to the Series Trust as at May 31,
202315 USD297,882,

SMBC Mikko Securities Inc_, holds 10024 of all units in issue in the Class USD and Class JPY
Hedged. As a result, any actions of SMBC Mikko Secunties Ine., can matenally impact the
Senes Trust,

6. Fees and Expenses

Administration Fees
The Administrator reeeives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD12,000 per anrum
of the WAV, accrued as of each Valuation Day and payable monthly in amrears.

The Administrator is also entitled to; {a) an establishment fee of USD3,000; (b) an annual fee
of USD5,000 in connection with provision of assistance in connection to the preparation of the
financial statements of the Series Trust; (¢) anannual fee of USD1,000in connection with filing
the audited accounts of the Series Trust with the Cayman Islands Monetary Authority; and (d)
an anmual fee of USD1,000 in commection with facilitating the Manager or its delegate in the
preparation of certain reports and/or statements required for Japanese regulatory purposes.

Manager Fees
The Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.025% per amnum of the
MAY, accrued and caleulated on cach Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears.

Investment Manager Fees
The Investment Manager receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.35% per annmam
of the WAV, accrued and caleulated on each Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears,

Trustee Fees
The Trustes receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of USD10,000 per anmum
accrued as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

Distributor/Agent Company Fees
The Distributor receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.50% per annum of the
MAV, accmuad and caleulated on each Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

6. Fees and Expenses (continued)

DistributorfAgent Company Fees (continued)
The Agent Company receives out of the assets of the Series Trust, a fee of 0.10% per annum
of the MAV, accrued and calculated on each Valuation Day and paid monthly in arrears.

Custodian Fees

The Custodian 1s entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Senes Trust, management and
transaction fees. The Custodian’s safe keeping fees are USDT50 per month, accrued on each
Valuation Day and pavable monthly in arrears. The transaction fees will be at custornary rates
as agread between the Trustes and the Custodian.

The fzes pavable as at May 31, 2023 are as follows:

usp

Admimistration fees 1.021
Manager fees 823
Investment Manager fees 11,465
Audit fees 17,509
Trustee fees 851
Distributor/ Agent Company fees 19,595
Custodian fees 1.843
Other fees and expenses 55,301
108,408

7. Financial Risk Management

The Seres Trust’s activities expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks: market nsk (including
currency nsk), credit risk and liquidity nisk.

Market Risk
The Series Trust invests solely in the Master Fund. All investments present a risk of loss of
capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of investments.

The value of the Series Trust's investments are affected by a mumber of factors, including but
not limited to, changes in the wider economy, financial and cumency markets and foreign
curreney exchange rates,

In a falling market environment, the value of the investments held by the Series Trust may
decline, and as a result, the NAV mav decline below its imitial pnneipal amount. Also, adverse
developments in an issuer’s economic conditions or such negative events as bankniptcy may
cause the value of the equities to decline substantially and may significantly impact the NAV.

171/257



EDINETOOOO
o = 2573
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

7. Financial Risk Management (continued)

Currency Risk

The Series Trust may hold monetary and non-monetary assets and incur menetary and non-
mongztary liabilities denominated in currencies other than USD. It may therefore be exposed to
eurrency risk, as the value of the assets and liabilities denominated in other currencies will
Huctuate due to changes in exchange rates.

If investing in the secunties of companies that are denominated in non-USD ewrrencies, the
Series Trust may be exposed to nsks that the exchange rate of USD relative to other currencies
may changs in a manner that has an adverse effect on the reported value of those securities.

Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would incur if the counterparties
failed to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Senes Trust.

Although the Trustee monitors the Custodian and believes it to be an appropnate custodian,
there is no guarantee that this or any custodian that the Senes Trust may use from fime to time,
will not become inselvent, the result of which could lead 1o losses for the Series Trust,

While there are codes and acts to proteet customer property in the event of'a failure, insolvency
of liquidation of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an institution
that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Series Trust would not incur losses due to its assets
being unavailable for a period of time, ultimately less than full recovery of its assets, or both.
Because all of the Series Trust’s cash is in custody with a single institution, such losses could
be significant and could matenally impair the ability of the Series Trust to achieve its
investment objective. The Series Trust is subject to credit nsk to the extent that this institution
may be unable to fulfill its obligations to repay amounts owed.

Liquidity Risk

Investors should be aware that the value of units might fall as well as rise. Investment in the
Series Trst involves a degree of nsk; there can be no assurance that the Series Trust’s
investment objective will be achieved.

The Series Tnust is exposed to repurchase of its units but management believes that the Series
Trust has sufficient resources to meet the present and foresesable needs of its business
operations and, if necessary, the liqudity to fund repurchases and achieve a markeat position
appropriately reflecting a smaller capital base. This position is monitored continually by
management to ensure that the Senes Trust has the ability to mest its obligations,

The Senes Trust may temporarily suspend the caleulation of the NAV and therefore, the right
of redemptions and subscriptions of offered Units in exceptional circumstances, No issue or
redemption of Units will take place dunng any peniod when the calculation of the NAV is
suspendad.
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NK PREMIUM CAT BOND FUND
A SERIES TRUST OF OFFSHORE STRATEGY FUND

Notes to the Financial Statements

May 31, 2023
{ Continued)

Financial Risk Management (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The risk of being unable to redeem from the Master Fund 1s a Series Trust specific risk. The
potential inability to redeem out of the Master Fund is a nisk for the Senes Trust’s investors,
especially given the NAV of the Series Trust 15 denved from the ownershap of the Master Fund.
Commitments and Contingencies

As at May 31, 2023, the Senes Trust had no commitments or contingencies.

Exchange rates used in this Report

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one USD as at
May 31, 2023

Japanese Yen 139.71500
Recent Pronouncements
There were no recent pronouncements duning the year ended May 31, 2023,
Subsequent Events

Management performed a subsequent events review up to September 21, 2023, which is the
date the financial statements were available to be issued

Effective June 1, 2023 through to September 21, 2023 investors subscribed USDT55,768 in
respect of Class USD Units and there were no subsenptions in respect of Class JPY Hedged
Units into the Series Trust and mvestors redeemed USDS 070,986 in respect of Class USD
Units and USD633,988 in respect of Class JPY Hedged Units from the Series Trust.

Management concluded that there were no other subsequent events which required additional
disclosure in these financial statements.

The financial statements were approved on September 21, 2023,
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2024
101,903,943.67 14,544,750
2,585,213.62 368,988
99,318,730.05 14,175,762

644,910

) 366,430

111.48 15,912

) 10,704
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2023 12 31

2023 2022

2,158,914 308,142 1,903,685 271,713

4 526,807 75,191 667,962 95,338
293,139 41,840 126,001 17,984
9 279,944 39,956 290,659 41,486

3,258,804 465,129 2,988,307 426,521

5 251,974 35,964 258,400 36,881

251,974 35,964 258,400 36,881

3,510,778 501,093 3,246,707 463,402

55,022 7,853 103,513 14,774
694,169 99,079 842,251 120,214
777,688 110,999 702,601 100,282

1,333,899 190,387 948,342 135,357

2,860,778 408,319 2,596,707 370,628

6 50,000 7,137 50,000 7,137
600,000 85,638 600,000 85,638
650,000 92,775 650,000 92,775

3,510,778 501,093 3,246,707 463,402

2024 28
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2023 12 31
2023 2022
( ) « ) ( ) « )
8,324,352 1,188,135 8,629,994 1,231,759
4 (55,868) (7,974) (214,637) (30,635)
8,268,484 1,180,161 8,415,357 1,201,124
1,181,172 168,589 732,448 104,542
51,219 7,310 51,860 7,402
9,500,875 1,356,060 9,199,665 1,313,068
7,8,9 6,925,470 988,472 6,804,376 971,189
2,575,405 367,588 2,395,289 341,880
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2023 12 31
( ) C ) ( ) C ) ( ) C )

2021 12 31 50,000 7,137 600,000 85,638 650,000 92,775
- - 2,395,289 341,880 2,395,289 341,880

- - (2,395,289) (341,880) (2,395,289)  (341,880)

2022 12 31 50,000 7,137 600,000 85,638 650,000 92,775
- - 2,575,405 367,588 2,575,405 367,588

- - (2,575,405) (367,588) (2,575,405)  (367,588)

2023 12 31 50,000 7,137 600,000 85,638 650,000 92,775
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2023 12 31

2,575,405 367,588 2,395,289 341,880

19,511 2,785 15,614 2,229
55,868 7,974 140,882 20,108
85,287 12,173 (223,141)  (31,849)
(167,138)  (23,856) 167,704 23,936
10,715 1,529 (140,231)  (20,015)
(48,491) (6,921) 84,851 12,111
(148,082)  (21,136) (88,986)  (12,701)
75,087 10,717 (128,920)  (18,401)

2,458,162 350,853 2,223,062 317,298

(13,085) (1,868) (18,539) (2,646)

(13,085) (1,868) (18,539) (2,646)

(2,189,848)  (312,557) (2,831,570)  (404,150)

255,229 36,429 (627,047)  (89,498)
1,903,685 271,713 2,530,732 361,211

2,158,914 308,142 1,903,685 271,713
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( )
( ) 1974 30
(2023 )
1985 12 12 (2021 ) ()
1988 13 2010 (2024 ) ()
1994 27
(2021 )y 12 2004
(2021 ) 2006
12 28
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( )
KY1-1102
61
2023 12 31 22 (2022 22 )
€)
( 1ASB )
( IFRS )
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(©)
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@
( ) (2021
) (2024 ) 2010 (2021 )
(2021 )
40 (50 )
(h)2023
2023
@
SH 2001 20
A.S. * 1978 27
N.D. * 1978 27
N.S. * 1978 27
* 1979 10 26
IMS 2012 27
IMS 2013 25
* 2023 2022 12 31
(b)
(
)
©
90 180
(@
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2023 2022
0 30 209,518 284,292
31 60 52,579 52,344
61 90 81,472 69,612
91 183,238 261,714
526,807 667,962
2023 2022
962,841 1,146,878
(436,034) (478,916)
526,807 667,962
2023 2022
478,916 338,034
55,868 214,637
(128,926) (25,801)
30,176 (47,954)
436,034 478,916
2023
341,637 421,491 242,987 156,891 1,163,006
- 10,179 2,906 - 13,085
341,637 431,670 245,893 156,891 1,176,001
197,176 395,118 198,987 113,325 904,606
3,612 6,230 5,313 4,356 19,511
200,788 401,348 204,300 117,681 924,117
2023 12 31
140,849 30,322 41,593 39,210 251,974
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2022
341,637 406,123 239,816 156,891 1,144,467
- 15,368 3,171 - 18,539
341,637 421,491 242,987 156,891 1,163,006
193,472 392,616 194,420 108,484 888,992
3,704 2,502 4,567 4,841 15,614
197,176 395,118 198,987 113,325 904,606
2022 12 31

144,461 26,373 44,000 43,566 258,400

2023 2022
80,000 ( ) 96,000 96,000
41,667 (2022 41,667 ) 50,000 50,000

( )
2021
18,410
18,776 19,151

2023 2022
134,057 227,187
- 134,057
134,057 361,244
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2023 12 31
98,077 (2022 75,059 )
2023 12 31
2023 2022
451,610 516,291
2023 2022
279,944 290,659
2023 12 31 5,438,235 (2022
5,123,865 ) 98,077 (2022 75,059 )
10.
2023 12 31
(2022
11.

2024 28
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2023 2022
8,324,352 8,629,994
4 (55,868) (214,637)
8,268,484 8,415,357
1,181,172 732,448
51,219 51,860
9,500,875 9,199,665
5,536,312 5,390,893
341,357 334,962
298,821 227,968
223,854 219,031
138,296 170,855
144,147 143,480
89,508 104,452
51,660 89,139
13,734 36,676
26,342 30,949
32,194 30,161
19,511 15,614
9,734 10,196
6,925,470 6,804,376
2,575,405 2,395,289
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Congolidaed Statement of Financial Poation

December 31, 2023
(sited in United Siates dollars)

Mote 2023 2022
Assels
Current assels
Cash and cazh equivalents 2158914 1903 685
Apcomunts receivable 4 526,807 667,962
Cither receivables and prepaid expenses 203,139 126,001
D from affiliated companies 9 279,944 290,659
3,258 804 2.588,307
Non-currenl asseis
Property, plant and equipment 5 251,974 258,400
251974 258400
Total assels Uss 3510778 3,246,707
Liabilities and shareholder’s equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 55022 103,513
Ungamed income and payable 1o clients 604,169 842,251
StafT bonuses pavable TT7.6088 T02.601
Drividends pavable 1,333,899 48,342
2,860,778 2,586,707
Shareholder’s equity
Share capital f 50,000 50,000
Retained eamings 610, 000 G0, 000
630,000 650,000
Total Habilities and sharehol der’s equity USSs 3510778 3,246,707

See accompanyving notes 1o the consolidated financial siate meris.

Approved on behalf of the Boand on March 28, 2024

Gary Butler

Director
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the vear ended December 31, 2023
(stated in United States dollars)
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Mole 2023 2022
Incaode
Revenue 8324352 5629999
Bad delas written off 4 (55,868) {214,637)
8268484 8415357
Cther income 1,181,172 732448
Rental income 51,219 51,860
9500875 9199 665
Expenses
Addministration expenses 7.8.9 6,925,470 6,804,376
Net income 1155 2575408 2,395 285

See accompanying notes to the consolidated finanefal state merns.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder' s Equity

For the vear ended December 31, 2023
(stated in United States dollars)
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Share Retained

capital eaImings Total
Balanee at December 31, 2021 50,000 G0, Dexd 650,000
N income - 2,395,289 2,395,289
Dividends declared = (2395289)  (2.395.289)
Balance at Diecember 31, 2022 S0.000 00, e G50, 000
N income - 1.575405 2.575405
Dividends declared = (5T5405)  (2.575.405)
Balance ai December 31, 2023 LSS 50,000 LAUERCIY 650,000

See accompanyinge netes fo the consolidated fnancral state ments.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Forthe yvear ended December 31, 2023
(stated in United Siates dollars)

2023 2022
Operating activities
Wet income 2575403 2,395,289
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation 19.511 15,614
Movement in provision for doubtful accounts 55,868 140,882
Adjustments to reconcile net income 1o cash provided by
Operaticens:
Accounts receivable 35,287 (223,141)
Cther receivables and prepaid expenses (167, 138) 167,704
Due from affiliated companies 10,715 {140,231)
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (48.491) 34,851
Unearngd ingome and payable to clients {145,082) {38.986)
Sraff bonuses payable 75,087 (128.920)
Met cash provided by operating activities 2458162 2,223,062
Investing activities
Purchasze of fixed assets {13,085) {18,539}
Met cash nsed in investing sctivities {13,085) {18.539)
Financing aclivities
Drividends paid (2,189 848) (2.831,570)
Increase {Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents during year 255,229 (627,047}
Cash and cash equivalents beginmng of vear 1,903,685 2,530,732
Cash and cish equivalents end of year LI5s 2,158,914 1,903,685

See aecompanying notes to the consolidated finaneial state mers,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
(stated in United States dollars)

1. Imcorporation and background Information

Intemational Management Services Ltd. (the “Compamy™ ) was incorporated under the Companies
At (2023 Reison) of the Cayman [slands on August 30, 1974 and provides company and insurance
management and corporate secretanal services, On December 12, 1985, the Company was licensed
under Section 4 (5) of the Companies Management Act (2021 Revision) to carry on the business of
comipany management in of within the Cavman Islands. On May 13, 1988, the Company was
licensed under Section 4 (2p of The Insurance Act 2010 {2024 Revision), to carry on the business
of insurance management in or within the Cayman Islands. Om July 27, 1994, the Company was
licensed under Section 12 of The Muotual Funds Act (2021 Revigsion) to carry on the business of
muteal find administration. OnJune 7, 2004 the Company was licensed under the Banks and Trust
Compames Act (2021 Revision), to camy on trust busmess from within the Cayman Islands. On
December 28, 2006, the Company surrendered its Companies Management Licence.

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of The IMS Group Ltd., a company also incorporated
in the Cayman Islands.

The financial results of the Company and its wholly owned subadianes (the “Group™) are
consolidated at vear end to form the Group.

The registered office of the Company is ¥ Floor Harbour Cendre, George Town, P.O. Box 61, Grand
Caynian KY1-1102, Cayman [slands,

The Group had 22 emplovess as at December 31, 2023 (2022: 22).

2. Basis of presentation
(el Statemens of compliance

The financial dgatements are prepared by the Group in accordance with the *Internationsl
Financial Reporting Standards for Small and Medivm-sized Enities (* IFRS for SMEs")" issued
by the Imemational Accounting Standards Board (*IASE™). The principal accounting policies
applied in the preparation of these consclidated financial staements are set out below, These
policies have been consistently applied 1o all the vears presented, unless otherwise stated.

(b Glalng concern

Management has made an assessment of the Gronp's ability to continue as a going concem and
i satisfied that the Group has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future,
Furthermore, management is not aware of amy material unceriainties that may cast a significant
doutt upon the Group's ability to confinue as a going concem. Therefore, the consolidated
finamcial statements contine to be prepared on the going concem basis.

fel Baris of measureniend

These consolidated financial statements are prepared on the lustorical cost.
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INTERMNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LT,
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Siatements

December 31, 2023
{stated in United Ktates dollars)

1. Basis of presentation {continued)
(el Funeriomal and presentation curme ey

The Growp's functicnal and prezentation cumrency is the United States dollar ("USSE™) and nol
the local curmency of the Cayman Islands reflecting the fact that the Group's operations are
pramarly conducted in United States dollars.

fe) Significan management judgement in applyving acoounting polfcies and estimation uncertainty

When preparing the Group's consolidated financial statements, maragement makes a number
of judgements, estimates and assumpions about the recognition and measurement of assets,
lLiabilities, revenne and expenses,

Significarst management judpement
There were no ggmficant judzements made by the management dunng the year.

Estimation uce riaimny

Esimates during the year are in relation to accounts receivable as described in note 3(c).

(i Corresponding figures
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the curment year presentation.

(el Capital manage ment

The Group's regulator, the Cayman Islands Monéetary Authonty (the * Authonty™), sets and
monitors capital requirements for the Group under the Mometary Authority Law (2021
Revision), the Companies Management Act (2024 Revision), the Insurance Act, 2010, the
Mutnal Funds Act (2021 Revigion) and the Bank and Trust Companies Act (2021 Revision).
The Group is required (o have a mimmum net worth of CIS400,000 (USS500,000) and has a 3
monih filing deadline afler year end date. The Group®s policy is to maintain a sirong capital base
to sustain fitture development of the business, The Group has complied with all imposed capital
requirements throughow the vear, and there were no matenal changes to the Growp's
management of capital during the yvear.

(h New Standavds effecnive for ol perfod be pinning § Jamsary 2023

There are no new standards or amendments effective for annual periods beginning 1 January
2023 that will have asigmificant impact to the Group,
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
MWotes to the Consolidaed Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
(siated i United States dollars)

3. Material accounting polides

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consigently to all periods presented in

these consolidated financial statements, There have been no changes to accounting policies, The
significant accounting policies adopted by the Group are s follows

e Conselidased wholly owned subsidiaries

Company Fusiness Drate of incorporation/addition

SH Corporate Services Lid Registered Office Services April 20, 2001
A5, Mominees Lud™ Momminee Company January 27, 1978
M.D. Mominee Ltd. * M omminee Company January 27, 1978
M.5. Nominee Lid.* Momminee Company Jamuary 27, 1978
Cardinal Nominee Limited®  Mominee Company Crctober 26, 1979
IMS Trustees Lid.® Trustee Services April 27, 2012
M S Liquidations Lid, Liquidation Services Jamuary 25, 2013

*  These wholly owned sabsidianes of the Company have been established to act only in a
nomines capacity and have nod traded in their own right during the years ended December
31, 2023 and 2022.

All income earned and expenses incumed by these companies are accounted for by the Company
and all inter-company (ransactions and balances are eliminated on consolidation. The financial
statements of the subsidianes are included in the consolidated Bnancial satemenis from the date
that control commences to the date that control ceases. The Group sccounts for business
combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to the Growp, The
considerstion is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net assets acquired.

(b Fivancial assets and liabilives

Fimancial instraments are initially measared af the transaction price (this includes transaction
cos except in the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities that will be measured at
fanr walue through profit or loss), IE however the arrangement constitiutes a financing transaction
it is then measwred at the present value of the future payments, discounted at a market related
interest rale.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
{stated in United States dollars)

3. Material accounting polides {continued)
fel  Accounts recervables

Accouns receivables represent amoumnts due from clients and related pamies for services
performed in the normal course of business, Most sales are made on the basis of normal credit
terms, and the receivables do not bear interest. Where credit is extended bevond nommal credit
terms, receivables are measured @ amonised cost nsing the effective interest method. Other
receivables are considered past due after 90 1o 130 days. At the end of each reporting period,
the carrying amomnts of accoins recervable arg reviewed to determine whether there 15 any
objective evidence that the amounts are nol recoverable. If 8o, an impairment 1oss is recognised
immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

(el Revenne Recopmition

The Group recogznises revemne in the amount expected to be received for services supplied at a
poind in time or over time as contractual performance obligations are fulfilled and comtrol of
services passes to the cusiomer.

Where the contractual performance obligations are satisfied over time and revenue is recognized
over time,

Where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, revenue is recognized when the
risks and rewards of ownership have tramsferred to the customer, This 15 at the point whene the

service is delivened to the customer and there are no unfulfilled obligations that conld affect the
cuslomer’s acceplance of the service.

Nature of sevices

The following 15 a descaption of the pnncipal activities from which the Group generates its
Tev e,

{il  Professional services

Fees gencrated from a range of professional senvices including directorship services,
captive insurance management services, frusiee services and anfi-money lawndering
SETVICEE,

i Muanagemens fee from related pariy
Fees generated from the provision of administration services (0 a relaled party,
{1t} Repistered office rervices

Fees generated from the provision of registered office services.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTI,

Motes o the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
{stated i United States dollars)

3. Material accounting polides (continaed)
(e} Revene Recopmitlon eontimed)
Performance obfigations and revenue recogniion policies

The Group recognizes revenue from the provision of fiduciary and registered office services to
client companies. The specific senvices requined involve the provision of a director to act in his
fiduciary capacity for clienl companies as well as the provision of a client company registered
office for a set anmmal fee. In addition, 85 pant of the contractual terms, client companmies also
require corporate services throughout the financial year on the basis of fees specified in the
contrac.

fel Foreign curvency

Aszsets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign cwmencies are translated al rates of
exchange prevailing at the consolidated statements of finemcial poation date. Trnsadions in
foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange muling on the date of the transaction.
Any resulting exchange gains or losses are credited or debited to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income,

i Cal and cosheaqavalenis

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of current bank accounts held with finameial institutions
with original terms to matunty of three months or less,

g Propesy, plas and eaquipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated a cost less accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment loss,

Drepreciation is recognized in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income after taking
into sccown residual values over the following expected useful lives of the assels using the

respective medhods:
Office ulding 28epa  Reducing Balance
Compuier equipment Jfepa.  Straight Line Method
Furmitiire and ecuipment lifapa  Redicing Balance
Leasehold improvements I®apa.  Reducing Balance

The carmrving smouwnt of propenty, plant and equipment iz reviewed ab each reporting date to
determing whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment losses are recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the vear in which they are identi fed.

i Leases

Leases are class fied as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease tnmsfier substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the lessee. All other leazes are classified
a5 operating leases.
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
{stated in United States dollars)

3. Material accounting polides {continued)
(i) Income recognition and fees filfed in advance

Management fees are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income over
the pericd for which services are provided,

Uneamed income and payable to clients comprise funds received from clients &s prepayments
fior services to b performed in flure years,

{(fl Expenses

Expenses are recogmised in the consolidated stalement of comprehensive income on the accrsl
beigis

(&l Enmployee benefits
il Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in a defined contribution plan. A defined contribadion plan is a
post=empioyvment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity and has no legal or comstructive obligation if the plan does not hold
sifficient assels to pay all emploves benefils relating (o employee service in the civent
and prior periods, Obfigations for contributions (o defined contribution penson plans ane
recogmised as an expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
incurred
(i) Shoreterm bemefits

Short-term emplovee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basiz amd
expensed as the related service is provaded. A liability 15 recogmsed for the amount
expected to be paid under short-temm cash bonus or profit-slmnng plans if the Group has
a presend legal or constmctive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past senvice
provided by the employvee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(i} Assets wunder aadminiziation

In the nommal course of business, the Group provides fideciary services by acting a8 trstee of
Trusts. The assets and liabilites of the Trsts under the Group's meanagement are nol incorpomted
inthese consolidated financial statements,

4. Accounts Receivable

The nature of the Group's exposune (o credit risk and its objectives, policies, and processes for
managing credit sk have not changed significantly from the poor year. The Group®s maximum
cxposure to credit nsk is the carrying value of #s financial assets. The Group establishes an
allowance for bad and doubeful accounts that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
accownls recervable.
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4. Accounis Receivable {continued)

The Group manages credit risk in respect of accounizs receivables by performing periodic reviews
of outstanding costomer balances, Management does nol expect any sigmficant counterparies (o
fail tomeet their obligations. Management believes that unimpaired amounts that are past due more

than 30 days are still collectible in full.

The Group's aging of accounts receivables at the reporting date was:

023 2022
0 i 30 days 200518 284,292
31 to 60 days 52,579 52,344
61 Lo 90 days §1472 69,612
More than 91 days 183,238 261,714
Uss 526,807 667,962
The Group's accounts receivables aof the reponting date were:
2023 2022
Gross accounts receivable 962,841 1,146,878
Provision for doubtfil accounis (436.034) (478.916)
USS 526807 667,962
Movements in the provision for doubtfid accounts during the vear are as follows:
023 2022
Balance at beginning of vear 478916 338,03
Charge to statement of comprehensive income 55,868 214,637
Recoveries of douht ful debis (128,926) {25.501)
Bad debts written off {recovered) 30,176 {47.95)
UsSs 436034 478,916
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
{stated in United States dollars)

5. Properiy, plant and equi pment

Office Computer  Furmiture & Leasehold
2023 bwlding  equipment  equpment  improvements Total
Cost:
Balance a beginming 31,637 421,491 242,987 156,591 1,163,006
of vear
Addditions - 10,179 2,906 - 13,085
Balance af end of vear 1637 431,670 245893 156,891 1176091
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance ai beginmng 197,176 395,118 193,987 113,325 Q0,61
of year
Charge for year A6l 6,230 3313 4,356 19,511
Balance af end of year 200,788 401,348 204,300 117,681 924,117
Met book value at
Drecember 31, 2023 USS 140,849 30,322 41,593 35,210 251,974
Office Compater  Furmitune & Leasehold
2022 bulding  equpment  equpment Improvements Tatal
Cost:
Balance af beginmng 1637 408,122 239816 156,891 1144467
of year
Audditions - 15,368 3171 - 18,539
Balance at end of year 341,637 421,491 242987 156,891 [ N
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance @ beginning 193,472 392616 194,420 103,484 BER.O92
of year
Charge for year 3,704 2,502 4,567 4.341 15.614
Balance af end of year 197,176 395,118 198,987 113,325 Sk, 606
Met book value a
December 31, 2022 USS 144 461 26,373 44,000 43,566 258,400
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to the Consolidated Fimaneial Stalements

December 31, 2023
(stated i United Siates dollars)

6, Share capltal

2023 2022
Authorised:
20,000 shares of CIS1 each Uss 96,000 G, 00
Izzued and fully paid:
41,667 shares (2022 41,667) LSS 50,000 50,000
7. Leases

The Group has a lease for its operating premises, a floor of an office bulding, The Group classifies
this lease as an operating lease, the lease is for a penod of 3 years commencing 1 August 2021, The
rent payable under the lease is USS18 410 per month for the period of the lease for the first vear,
LIS518,776 per month for the second year and USS19, 151 per month for the third year of the lease.

The leaze generally imposes a restriction that, wnless there is a coniraciual rght for the Group to
sublet the assel o another party, the premises can only be used by the Group. Leases may only be
cancelled by incurring a substantive termination fee.

The table below degenibes the nature of the Group's leasing activities:

Futrre mirinom lease paymernis

The total of futine minimim lease payiments under the lease may be analysed as follows:

023 022

Less than one vear 134,057 227187
Greater than one year but less than five vears = 134,057
LSS 134,057 361,244
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December 31, 2023
(stated in United States dollars)

8. Defined contribution pension plan

The Group participates in the Island Hertage Retirement Plan, a defined contnbution pension
scheme. The Group iz required to match each emploves's contribution on a one 1o one basis up to
5% of the employee's annual salary. Dunng the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group
coniritmeed USHSE.07T (2022; USST5.059),

9. Helated party transactions

During the vear ended December 31, 2023, the Group eamed the following administration and
management fees from its affiliated companies:

2023 2022
Corporate Filing Services Lid. LSS 451,610 516,291
Amoumnts die from related affiliates are as follows:

2023 2022
Corporate Filing Services Lid Uss 279944 240,659

Draring the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group paid U 585438 235 (2022 USS5,123.865) in
short-term employment benefits and USS98,077 (2022: USS75,059) in long-term employment
benefits (o key management personnel.

10, Contingendies

The Group. inits fiduciary capacity, may be a pamy to litigation and claims in the normal course of
business. In the opinion of the Directors, which is based on the advice of the Group's legal counsel,
no contingency provisions are required at 3 1 December 2023 {2023: LISSKIL),

11. Subsequent events

In prepanng these consolidated financial statements, management has evaluated and disclosed all
matenal subsequent events up to March 28, 2024 whach 15 the date that the consolidated financial
staiements were available to be issned
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INTERNATIONAL MANAGEMENT SERVICES LTD.
Motes to the Consolidaed Financial Statements

December 31, 2023
(siated i United States dollars)

12. Consoelidated Statement of Comprehensive Income — Detai Led

Mol 2023 2022
Income
Management Fees 8,324,352 8.620 904
Bad detis written off’ 4 [55,868) (214,637)
B3.268 484 8415357
Oither income 1,181,172 T12 448
Remal income 51,219 51,860
9,500,875 9199 665
Expenses
Salaries and related cods 5,536,312 5,390,893
Rent Expense 341357 334,962
Cifice supplies and sundnes g 821 227068
Govenment Fees 223854 219,031
Professional Fees 138,296 170,855
[nsurce 144,147 143 480
Ltilities 89,508 104,452
Advertising and Marketing 51,660 50139
Subscriptions 13,734 36,676
Repairs and Mantenance 26,342 30,949
Donations 321 30,161
Diepreciation 19,511 15,614
Bank clarges 9734 10, 196
6925470 6,804,376
Nel income 5% 2575405 2,395 289
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Independent auditor s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2023, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust”s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2023;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2023;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust”s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Series Trust”s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust”s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor ” s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management *s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor ™ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

September 21, 2023
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Independent auditor s report

To G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of NK Premium CAT Bond Fund (a series trust of Offshore Strategy Fund) (the Series Trust) as
at May 31, 2024, and the results of its operations, changes in its net assets, its cash flows and the
financial highlights for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

What we have audited
The Series Trust”s financial statements comprise

the statement of assets and liabilities as at May 31, 2024;

the schedule of investments as at May 31, 2024;

the statement of operations for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended;

the statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

the financial highlights for the year then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor =s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by the International
Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information
Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report
(but does not include the Series Trust”s financial statements and our auditor®s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Series Trust”s financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for such
internal control as management determines 1is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for evaluating whether there are
conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series
Trust”s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that the financial
statements are issued, or available to be issued, and disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
this evaluation unless the liquidation basis of accounting is being used by the Series Trust.

Auditor ” s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management *s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor ™ s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Series Trust
to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for G.A.S. (Cayman) Limited solely
in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter
and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

September 30, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT
To the Directors of International Management Services Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of International Management Services Ltd. (the
““Company””), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2023, and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in shareholder®s equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of material accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2023, and its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard for Small and Medium- Sized
Entities (““IFRS for SMEs”?).

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for the Company"s directors as a body for regulatory filing
purposes only. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any
other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come, save where expressly agreed by our

prior consent in writing.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (““ISAs””). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants® [International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with IFRS for SMEs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company®s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or cease operations, or has

no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company*s financial reporting process.

Auditor”s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor"s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

eldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

eObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company®s internal control.

eEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

<Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company®s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

eEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Grant Thornton
George Town
Grand Cayman
March 28, 2024
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